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To the Members of JR Toll Road Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of JR To}l Road Private Limited {"the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“Financial Statements”).

I our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {"Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2023, its losses including Other Comprehensive Income, its Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”) specified under
Section 143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
te our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the iCAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinjon on the financial
statements.

Uncertainty Related to Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note No. 34 of the Financial Statements which indicates that the Company
has incurred a net Joss 2644.31 Million during the year ended March 31, 2023 and as of date the
current liabilities exceed the current Assets by Rs. 2107.78 Million. Further, the concession
agreement has been terminated by NHAI and the project assets have been handed over, This
indicate that uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability.to...
continue as going concern. However, the Statement of the Company has been prepared o gLy,
concern basis for the reasons stated in the said Note.
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Emphasis of Matter CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

We draw attention to Note No. 34 of the accompanying financial statements wherein the
company has disclosed that the concession agreement has been wrongfully terminated by NHAI
and it has filed its petition under the Arbitration & Conciliation Act for wrongful termination of
the project and / or compensation in lieu thereof Based on the best estimates of the
ntanagement, the company expects that the outcome should be in favour of the company and or
the receipt of the compensation. However, on a prudent basis, the company has made a
provision towards Impairment on intangible Assets of Rs. 2265.60 Million.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's report and sharehoider’s
Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assur nce concius;on thereon. 5 :

in connection thh oul audit of the financial shtemcnts OUI 1e5po:151b1!zty is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 1nformat10n is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtamed during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially mlsstated If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this othe' ‘information; we required to
report that fact The other information is llkely to be provided to us after the date of our report.

We have nothmg to report in this regard.

Management Responslb;llty for the Fmancral Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is respons]ble for the matters stated m_Sectlon 134(5) of the
Act, with respect to the p;epal atfon ofthcse Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the Financial Position, Financial Performance including Other Compaehenswe Income, Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS

and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of the appropriate
accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accourting records,
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends Tethymnate,
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the (Pompan indancial Feportin
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detemng a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error as fraud may ‘involve collusmn forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepr esenlalions 01 the override of internal Conti ol.

«  Obtain an underslandmg of internal control reievant to.the audit in order to design audit
procedures: that are appropriate in the cncumstances Undel section 143(3)(i} of the Act,
we are also respons:b]e for expressing our. oplnlon on whethel the Company has adequate
internal fi f_“nancn] controls system in p]ace and the oper atmg effectlveness of such controls.

+  Evaluate: _1e appropriateness of accountmg policies used and the reasonableness of
accountmg esnmates and related dlsclosures made by management

gomg concern basis of

«  Conclude on ;-the appropriateness ;of management’s use of th
material uncertainty

accounting and ‘based on the audlt ewdence obtained, whether
exists related to events or condft:ons that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a gomg concel n. If we conclude that a material uncertamty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of ocur auditor's report,
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concern.
«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statementis represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Ind AS Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider guantitative materiality and qualitative

factors it

i. planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
ii. toevaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Staterpepis.:
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compilied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and te communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report} Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the "Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained ali the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief"were necessary for the ]mrlmsos of our audit;

b} Tn our opinion,. pl_ope! “books of account as. :_equn ed by law have been kept by the
Company §0. fa: as appears from our exammatlon of_those books;

c) The Balance Sheet Statement of Profit and Loss mciudmg Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
) e in agreement with the hooks | ( f_:account '

d} Inour opm:on the aforesaid ﬁnanual statements comp]y the accounting standards

specnfed under section 133 ofthe Act

e) The Matter desu ibed in Uncer tamty related to Going Concel n:section and Emphasis of
Matter above, m our opmmn, may have an adverse impact on' he functioning of the

company;

f) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the

Act;

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company with reference to these financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B”,

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, we report that no
remuneration has been paid by the company to its directors during the year. Hence the
requirement of the company for compliance under this section is not applicahle,

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rules 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as axnc;nﬂt;ﬁ,“igp M
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanatigas giventaqns
and as represented by the management:
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i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at March 31,
2023 on its financial position in its Financial Statement. -~ Refer Note No. 33 &

34 of the accompanying financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

fil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

v, (a) Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note No. 38 to the financial statement no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”}, with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly iend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or _provide any guarantee, security or
the like on h_eha}f of the Ultimate Benef‘ iciarics;

[b) Management has represented to us that “te the best of its knowledge and
be]:ef as disclosed in Note No. 38, 1o the ﬁnancmi statement no funds have
_-'_been received by the Company ﬁ om any per on(s} or entity(ies), including
“foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded

""'_111'w: iting or otherwise, that th __:'Company shall, whethe: directly or indirectly,
entified in any manner

'._'-.__'__end or invest in other p_ sons or entities
‘whatsoever by or on behalf. ‘of the Funding Party { timate Beneficiaries”) or
plowde any guarantee securlty or the like on__'behaif of the Ultmlate

.Ben'f' _;anes

(c) Bascd on -our audlt__-pl ocedure conducted that are cons;deaed reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to ‘our attention that
cause us to believe that the representation given by the management under
paragraph (2) (i) (iv) (a} & {b) contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.
For MKPS & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registratign no, 302014E ,

"Na¥endra Khandal

ypartner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN: 23065025BGRDMZ79523

Place :Mumbai
Date :April 26,2023
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“ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORI ONE BRI FIBANDIMITANTS
STATEMENTS OF JR TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED,

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit,

we state that:

i

i} (@)  (A) The company does not carry an property, plant and equipment in its financial E
statements and hence the reporting requirements under this sub-clause is not

applicable,
(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its

intangible assets.

(b) In view of there being no property, plant and eguipment, the reporting
reguirements under this sub-clause is not applicable.

(c} There are no immovable properties disclosed in the accompanying financial
statements and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause () of clause
(i) of par agz aph 3 of the or de; are not apphcable

(d) As exp}a:ned to us, the company has no'__ re__\_z_:']u_e(l any of its Intangible Assets

durj 1_1_1_g _the year.

{e) Accordmg to the information and explanatlons pm\nded to us and on the basis of
examination of the records of ithe company, we. -report that no proceedings
hav ‘been initiated during the year or are pendmg agamst the company as at
Mai Ch 31 2023 fm holdmg any.benami p10pe1 ty un h_e Benami Transactions

i)  (a) inour opmlon and accmdmg to the information and cxplanatzons given to us, the

company does not carry any inventories. Hence, the repor tlngiequnemems under

sub-clause (@) of ciause (1;) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(b} The company has not been sanctioned any working capital Iimits from banks or
financial institutions and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (b)
of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

iii) The company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
reporting requirement of clanse 3(iii){a), (b}, (c}, (d}, (e} & (f) of the Order are not

applicable.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not advanced any joans to directors / to a company in which the Director is
interested to which the provisions of section 185 of the Act apply. Further, based on the
information and explanations given to us, being an infrastructure company, the
provisions of section 186 of the Act to the extent of loans, guarantees and securities
granted are not applicable to the company. Hence, the reporting requirements undér«
clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

v} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given tgjus, the,




vi)

vii)

viii)
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company has not accepted any deposits during the period wiclkbAGHIER BBy B HOHN TANTS
directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1} of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed
such records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have been
made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(2}  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and

based on our examination of the books of the company, the company is not regular
in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues including Goods and Services
Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any other
material statutory dues to the appropriate authorities, which are deposited with
delay.
There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six
months from the ciate ‘they became payable.

(b)  Accor ding. to Lhe info: mation and expianations given to us, there are no statutory
dues refer red to in clause (a) above which have _not heen deposited on account of

anydlsputeotlmrthanthe following: - e
Name' of the | Nature of | Period 1_for wluch Forum where Amount

stath{e Dues the " amount | dispute is involved
L related- pending (inRs.)-
iqnance Act, | Service October 2010 to | Bombay High | 2,37,89,544
1994 Tax September 2015

Accordmg to the information and expianatlons andr epl esentauon given to us, there
are no transactions :elatmg to previously unrecorded - Jncome that has been
suzlendez ed or disclosed as mcome during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961,

(a) (i) The Company has defaulted in payment of following dues to the banks

during the year, which were paid on or before the Balance Sheet date. Refer

Note No. 9 (4a) of the financial statement:

Nature of | Name of | Amount not paid on | No. of days delay

borrowing Lender due date or unpaid
(Rs. In Millions}

Principal interest | Principal | Interest

Term Loan Yes Bank 370,38 103.98 89 89

(ii) The Company has defaulted in repayment of following dues to the banks
during the year, which were not paid as at the Balance Sheet date. Refer Note
No. 9(4b) of the financial statement:
Nature of | Name of | Amount not paid | No. of days delay
borrowing Lender on due date or unpaid

{Rs. In Millions)
Principal Interest | Principal _j.Interest
Term Loan Yes Bank 581.54 | 143.89 A8%] }(‘:fj;_:sg\‘\
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us, the Company has not been declared wilful defauiter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority. (refer Note
no. 9(1)(viii} to the financial statement}

{¢)  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fresh term loans have been taken during the year.

(d)  Onan overall examination of the financial statements of the company, in our
opinion funds raised on short term basis aggregating to Rs. 903 Million have
been prima-facie being used for long term purposes during the year.

(e)  The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (e) of clause (ix) of

paragraph 3 of the order are not appiicable.

(f) The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (f) of clause (ix) of

paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

x) {a)  The Company has not lalsed money by way of initial public offer or further
public - offer [mc!udmg “debt instr uments) and hence clause (x)(a) of

_paragraph 3 of the Order is not apphcableﬁto the Company.
(b) - During the year, the Company_.;_h_as not 111_;1_;1_;3_:311)1 preferential allotment of
~:shares or fully or partly or optionally convertible debentures and Hence
reporting under clause (x}{b) ofpal agraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to

 the Company. :

(xi) Based on the audit pr ocedu: es performed for, the_pu_;pose of reporting the
- frue and fair view of the ﬁnanma] statements and.as per information and
“‘explanations given to.us, no fraud by the Company r.on the Company has

been notlced or reported during the year. :

(b} Dunng the year'z'.no !epmt under sub-section 12 of.-.section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor/Secretarial auditor or by
us in Fortn ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

{¢) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

(xii} In our opinion, Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause

{xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{xiii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 188 and section

177 of the Act and their details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc,

as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv) {(a)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate sitheie size
and nature of its business.
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date, for the period under audit for the purpose of planning our audit
procedures,

(xv} According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in Section 192 of the Act.

(xvi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

(b)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided
to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the Company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during
the year as per the Reserve bank of India Act 1934, '

{c)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided
to us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) As Iepi'esented by the méhdgement "I't'h'é"'gt oup does not have more than one
core investment company (CIC) as. part o 'the group as per the definition of
.-_}_group contained in Core Investment Compames (Reserved Bank) Directions,

{xvii) In our opinien, and according to lhe information and explanatlons provided to us,
Company has not incurred any cash losses in the cun ent financial year and in the

1mmédlately preceding ﬁnanc1al

ng the year. Therefore,

{xviii) There has been no resignation ofthe statutory audttms
not applicable to the

}JIOVIS.IOIIS of clause {xvm] of___ aragraph 3 of the Order al
Company :

(xix)} Accor dmg to the mfo;matmn and explanations given to us and.zon the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examinaticen of the evidence supporting and the various conditions
specified under paragraph "Uncertainty related to Going Concern” & “Emphasis of
Matter” above, which indicates and causes us to believe that uncertainty exists as on
the date of the audit report that the Company is capable of meeting ail its Habilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one

year from the balance sheet date.

,,, A
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(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
audit procedures, The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) contribution under
section 135 of the Act is not applicable to the Company, Therefore, the provisions of
clause (xx) (a} & (b} of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014E

Natendra Khandal

Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN : 23065025BGRDMZ9523

Place :Mumbai
Date :April 26,2023
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORW FONE BED WOSNOIBLTANTS
STATEMENTS OF JR TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i} of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
financial statement of JR Toll Road Private Limited {“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on

that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering -the ‘essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit:of ‘Internal “Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the
“Guidance Note”) issued: by the Institute of Chalte_r d ccountants of India {“{CAI"). These
responsibilities mclude the design, implementation -and mamtenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectlve!y for en '_rmg the orderly and efficient
conduct of its: husmess including adherence to. Companys ‘policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the pr eventmn and detection of frauds and erTors, the accuracy and completeness of

the accountmg-;reco:ds and the timely prepantlon of tehable financial information, as
required underthe Act. Sy

Auditor’s Resbonsibility

Our 1espon51b111ty is to express an opmlon on the Company's internal: fmanaal controls over
financial reporting w1th reference to ‘these financial statements bhasec son our audit, We
conducted our audit in accordance w;th the Guidance Note issued by ICAI and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal controt based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptigte ¥eprovide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial coptEes—System<over

financial reporting with reference to these financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting With Reference To
These Financial Statemeits

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance w1th generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial repor ting with reference to these financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company ;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
materiai effect on the Financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Contmls Over Financial Reporting With
Reference To These Fmancnal'Statements ST :

Because of the 11}herent Thmitations of internal ﬁxlanua! COIltl ols over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements, znc]udmg the possﬂ:nl:ty of coltusion or improper
management override of contmls material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected Also, pm]ect:ons of any evaluation of the "ntm nal financial controis over
financial teportmg with reference to these f1nanc1al statement: 0 future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control .over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements may hecome madequate because of change conditions, or that the
degree of comphance with the policies or p: ocedm es may deter; :

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best q)[f our mformatmn and according to the exp!anatlons given to us, the
Company has, in all mater{al respect\;, an adequate internal financial: COlltl{)lb system over
financial reporting and such internal financial contrals over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2023 based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014E

Narendra Khandal
Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN : 23065025BGRDMZU523

Place :Mumbai
Date :April26,2023




JR Toll Road Pvt Ltd
CIN: U45203MH2009PTC197721

Balance Sheet as at Mar 31, 2023 ( Discontinued Operation )

— T Millions
Particulars Note As af As at
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Concession Intangible assets 4 413.02 2,981.89
{b} Other non - Current Financial Assets 5c - 0.02
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 0.63 0.63
(d) Deferred tax assets {net) 12 - 187.21
Total Non-Current Assets 3 413.65 3,169.75
Current assets
(a} Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents Ba 74.02 5.40
(i) Other financial assets 5h 10.94 2293
{b) Other current assets & 4.19 7.58
Total Current Assets 89.15 35.91
Total Assets 502.80 3,205.66
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(&) Equity share capital 7 0.11 0.1
{b) Subordinated debt (in nature of Equily) 8a 1,561.81 1,561.81
(c) Other equily 8b {4,547.55) {(1,8603.24)
Total Equity {2,985.63) {341.32}
LIABILITIES
Non-current liahilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 9a 955.16 1,668.23
(b} Provisions 12b 336.34 355.99
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,291.50 1,924.22
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 9b 1,894.41 1,380.18
(i) Trade payables 0
(A} Total outstanding dues of 85.04 91.56
Creditors ather than Micro and
Smalt Enterprises
(iify Other financial liabilities 11 216.10 140.01
(b) Other current liabilities 13 1.38 0.81
(¢} Provisions 12a - 0.22
Total Current Liabilities 2,196.93 1,622.76
Total Equity and Liabilities 502.80 3,205.66
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our altached report of even date.
For MKPS & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chariered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014f

drendra Khandal

Partner
Membership Number : 065025

Srinivasa Chari Kasoju Shajfendra H Jain
Director Diregtor
[N:08759143 DIN:§8393281
Place: Mumbai

Date: Aprit 26, 2023

Place: Mumbai
Date: Aprif 26, 2023




JR Toll Road Pvi [.td
CIN: U45203MH2009PTC197721
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year Ended Mar 31, 2023 ( Discontinued Cperation )
¥ Miflions
. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars Note Mar 31, 2023 March 31' 2022
Revenue from Operations 14 474.32 556.42
Other lncome 15 - 0.04
Total Income 474.32 556,46
Expenses
Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses 16 72.22 145,52
Employee benefils expense 17 4.56 10.20
Finance costs 18 257.84 330.09
Depreciation and amortization expense 4 303.27 328.54
Other expenses 19 27.93 26.82
Total expenses 665.82 841.17
Profit / {loss) before exceptional items and tax {191.50) {284.71)
Exceptional Expenses
Loss on Impairment of Assels 2,265.60 -
Profit / {Loss) before tax (2,457.10) (284.71)
Tax expense
Deferred tax charge/{credit) 187.21 72.26
income Tax for earlier year - 0.05
Profit/(Loss) After Tax {2,644.31) (357.02)
Other Comprehensive Income/ (l.oss)
- items that will not be reclassified
to profit orloss
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans (0.36)
- Income tax relating to above - (0.09)
Other Comprehensive Income! (Loss) - {0.27)
Total Comprehensive Income/ {Loss) (2,644.31) {357.29)
Earning/ {loss) per equity share (Face Value per share T10 each)
Basic & Diluted 25 {2,47,039.05} 33,353.56
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For MKPS & Associates ) For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants o
Firm Registration No. 302014F:
Narendra Khandai srnvasa unan nasoju  Shailendra H Jain
Partner Director Director
Membership Number ; 065025 DIN:08759143 D&{\I:06393281
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: Aprii 26, 2023 Date: April 26, 2023




JR Toll Road Pvt Lid
CIN: U45203MH2009PTC197721
Cash flow Statement for the period ended Mar 31, 2023 ( Discontinued Operation )
T Millions
. Year Ended Year ended
Particulars Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A CASH FLOW FROM OFPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit / {L.oss) before tax {2,457.10} {284.71)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 303.27 328.54
Interest income - (0.04}
Provision fer Leave Encashment and Gratuity 0.20 .28
Provision for Resurfacing expenses - 67.44
impairment of Assets 2,265.60 -
Finance Cost 257.85 330.08
369.82 441.60
Cash Generated from Operations before
working capital changes
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/decrease in financial assels 12.01 (0.80)
{Increase)decrease in other current assets 3.39 187
Increase/(decrease) in {rade payables {6.53) 2777
Increase/{decrease} in other financia! liabilities (3.04} 1.63
increase/{decrease) in provisions {20.08) (26.10)
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 0.58 0.55
{13.69) 4.72
Cash generated from operations 356.13 446.32
Taxes {paid) net of refunds 0.00 0.08
Net cash generated from operating activities - {A} 356.13 446,40
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
(Purchase} /sale proceeds of Intangible Assets - 2.44
Interest received - 0.04
Net cash (used in} / generated from investing activities - [B] - 2.48
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from inter-corporate deposits (short term borrowings) 251.70 300.70
Repayment of long term borrowings {370.38) {454.87)
Interest paid {168.83}) (297.60}
Net cash used in financing activities - [C] (287.51) {451.77)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - [A+B+C] 68.62 (2.89)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6.40 8.28
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 74.02 540
Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - in Current accounts 74.02 502
Cash on hand - 0.38
74.02 5.40

Total Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note §a)

Refer Note 32 - Disclosure pursuant to para 44 A to 44 E of Ind AS 7 -Cash flow Statements

The balance in current account with banks of Rs. 74.02 milfion (Rs. 5.02 rillion) lying in Escrow account with bank held as security against

borrowings.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 3020145

For and on hehalif of the Board

Srinivasa Cnari Kasoju  Shailehdra H Jain

'N endra Khandali

“Partner
Membership Number : 085025

Dirgctor
DIN 6323281

Director
DIN:O8758143

Place: Mumbai

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2023

Date: April 26, 2023




JR Toll Road Company Limited
CIN: U45203MH2009PTC197721
Statement of Changes in Equity ( Discontinued Operation )
|
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL I? Millions
|
Balance at the Changes during the year | Balance at the end of
Particulars _ Notes | peginning of the year the year
For the year ended March 37, 2002 ' 0.17 - 0.71
For the year endod March 3%, 2023 7 0.4 - 0.1
8. SUB-ORDINATED DEBT . :
. Balance at the Changes during the year | Balance at the end of
Particulars Notes | paginning of the year the year
For the year ended March 31, 2022 o 8a 1,561.81 . - “1,561.81
For the year ended March 31, 2023 ’ 1,56%.81 - -1,561.81
¢. OTHER EQUITY % Millions
Equity Component of Reserves and Surplus
. compoud financia . —— Total
Particulars _ Note instruments Retained Eﬁrnmgs .
(Note 8b} {Note 8c)

Balance af April 01, 2022 32.50 {1.578.45) {1,545.95)
Profit/ {loss) for the year {357.02) (357.02)
Other comprehensive income for the year :

Remeasurement gains/ (loss) an defined benefit plans : - 0.2 {0.27)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (357.29) ' (357.29)
Batance at March 31, 2022 32.50 {1,935.74) (1,903.24}
Batance at April 01, 2022 i 32.50 (1,935.74) {1,903.24)

Profitf {loss) for the year {2,644.31) . (4,644.31)

Other comprehensive income tor the year i : :

Remeasurement gains/ (Joss) on defined benefit . . | . P
Total comprehensive income for the year - -{2,644.31) {2,644.31)
Batanco at Mar 31, 2023 ' i 8h 32,50 {4,580.05) T {4/547.55)
As per our atltached report of even dale. '

For MKPS & Associafes Forand on belja!f of the Board

Chartered Acgountants : ‘

Firm Registration No. 302014E

ge(rendra Khandal ‘SrinivgsaLhar Kasoju  SHaifendra H Jain
artner Director Didettor

Membership Numbar : 085025 DIN:087558143 DI P6393281

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: April 26, 2023 Date: April 26, 2023




JR Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1: Corporate information

JR Toil Road Private Limited ("the Company”) has been awarded on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT)
basis, strengthening of the existing catriageway from 246 Km. to 298 Km. on the Jaipur — Reengus
section of National Highway No. 11 in the State of Rajasthan and widening thereof te 4 lanes and its
improvement, operation and maintenance under the Cencession Agreement dated February 18, 2010 with
National Highways Authority of India. The Concession Agreement is for a period of 18 years from August

14, 2010, being the appoinied Date,

The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Reliance Infrastructure Limited. At the end of the Concession
period, the entire facility wilt be transferred to NHAL.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors an April 26, 2023
Pursuant to the provisions of section 130 of the Act the Central Government, income tax authorities and
other statutory regulatory body and section 131 of the Act the board of directors of the Company have
powers to amend / re-open the financial statements approved by the board / adopted by the members of

the Company.

The Company is a private limited company incorperated and domicited in india. The registered oftice of the
Company is located at Reliance Centre, 19 Walchand Hirachand Marg, Bailard Estate, Mumbai 400 001.

Note 2: Basis of preparation

These Financial Statemenis comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. These Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Schedule
il of the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and regulations.

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets and
fiabilities which have been measured at fair value.

These Financial Statements are presented in ¥ Millions, except where otherwise indicated,

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and
disclosures mandated by Schedule Ili to the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable proncuncements and

regulations.
Note 3: Summary of Significant accounting policies
3.1 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assefs and fiabilities in the balance sheet based on curren¥ non-current
classification,

An asset is treated as current when it is:
= Expecied to be reafised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

*  Expected to be realised within tweive months after the reporting period, or
» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at jeast 5

twelve months after the reparting period

Ali other assels are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when;
= |tis expected to be settied in normal operating cycle

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
i

§ the reporting period

All other iigbilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acqguisition of assets for processing and their realization in




JR Toll Read Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

cash and cash equivaients. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

3.2 Functional and presentation currency

3.3

Items included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The functional statemenis
are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which the company’s functionat and presentation currency.

fair value measurement

Fair vaiue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
ot the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the fiability takes place either:

= Inhe principal market for the asset or fabiiity, or
= Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principat or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or Hability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-inancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it {o another markel
participant that wouid use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation fechnigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are avaflable to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing

the use of uncbservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statemenis are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest fevel input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statemenis on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)

at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non —
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financia! assets measured

at fair value.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies, For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation fo contracts and other refevant documents.

The management aiso compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
externat sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and #Habilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assef or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair vaive. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

Disclosures for valuation metheds;.significant estimates and assumptions of Financial instruments
(including those carried at athoiusew cpgtinote 20) and Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurements
hierarchy (note 21).




JR Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

3.4

3.5

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized up on transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that
refiects the consideration we expect o receive in exchange for those services.

Toll revenue

The income from foll revenue from operations of the facility is accounted on accural basis.

Effective from April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
using the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied fo contracts thaf were not compieted as at April 1,
2018. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method, the comparatives have not been
retrospectively adjusted. There was no impact on adoption of Ind AS 115 in the financial statements.

Others

Interest Income on financial assets measured at amortized cost is recognised using the effective inferest
rate method.

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss oniy when the right to receive payment is
established.

Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

The Company has Tolf Road Concession rights where it Builts, Operates and Transfers (BOT)
infrastructure used to provide public service for a specified period of time. These arrangements may
inciude infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire usefu life.

These arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible asset
model is used o the extent that the Company receives a right (a license) to charge users of the public
service. The financial asset model is used when the Company has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the granter for the construction services.
When the unconditionaf right 1o receive cash covers only part of the service, the two models are combined
to account separately for each component. #f the Company performs more than one service {i.e.,
ceonstruction of upgrade services and operation sefvices) under a single contract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference to the refative fair values of the services

delivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable.

The intangible assets is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred to acquire asset, which is
the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction services delivered,

Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected toli
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The projected
total toll revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case of
any material change in the expected pattern of economic benefits. Refer note 22 for description and

significant terms of the concession agreements,

Financial assets model

The financial asset model applies when the operator has an unconditional right fo receive cash or another
financial asset from the grantor in remunerations for concession services. in the case of concession
services, the operator has such an unconditional right if the grantor contractuaily guarantees the payment
of amount specified or determined in the contract or the shortfall, if any, between amounis received from
users of public service and amounts specified or determined in the Contract.

Financial Assets resufting from application of Appendix D of ind AS 115 are recorded in the Balance Sheet
unider the heading “Other Financial Assets” and recognized at amortised cost.

However in case of certain arrangements, the contract may include a payment commitment on the part of
the concession grantor covering oniy part of investment, with the balance to be recovered from by charging
users of service . In such arrangements the investment amount guaranieed by the concession grantor is
yecognized under the financial asset model and the residual balance is recognized under the intangible

}%sset model.

¥
Any asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognized on disposal or when no fulufe,

e —




JR Toll Road Private Limited
Notes fo Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

3.8

economic benefits are expected from ifs future use or disposal or when the contractual rights to the
financial asset expire,

Maintenance obligations

Contractual obligations to maintain, replace or restore the infrastructure {principally resurfacing costs and
major repairs and unscheduled maintenance which are required to maintain the Infrastructure asset in
operational condition except for any enhancement element) are recognized and measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date for which
next resurfacing wouid be required as per the concession arrangement. The provision is discounted fo its
present value at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the

risks specific to the liabiity.
Taxes

Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected fo be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and
generales taxable income. Current income tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit
and Loss is recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss {either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Current tax ifems are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction gither in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and

establishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum Afternate Tax (MAT') under the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax
in the statement of profit and loss. MAT paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment to future income lax liability, is considered as an asset if there is a
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in
the balance sheet when it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the

Company.
Current tax assets and liabitities are offset only if, the Company:

ayhas a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b}intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and seitle the fiability simuitaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting

date.
Deferred tax fiabilities and assets are recognized for all taxable {emperary differences

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be avaiiable against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax

losses can be ufilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no fonger probabie that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aflow all or pait of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that #t has become probable that fufure taxable profits wilt aliow the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred {ax assets and liabifities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settfed, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating, to, Jtems recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized outside
the Statement oftronyand:loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax iterng,
are recognizeg qrcerrelaupn-iddhe underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or dl;@éﬁ?

in equity.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legaily enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes refate to the same taxable enfity and

the same taxation authority.

3.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily fakes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitatised as
part of the cost of the asset. Alf other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they ocour.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the

borrowing costs.

3.8 lLeases

Operating fease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the income statement on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

3.9 Contingent liabilities and contingent Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence wili be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of ane or more uncertain future events beyond the controt of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent iiability aise arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liabilify that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably, The contingent
liability is not recognised in the books of accoumts but its existence is disclosed in the Financial
Statemenis. A Coniingent asset is not recognized in financial statements, however, the same are disclosed

where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
assel's carrying amount exceeds ifs recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
assel's fair value less costs of disposal and vaiue in use, For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the fowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of

each reporting period.

3.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, bul only when the refmbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

3.12 Employee benefits

(i) Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settied wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounis-gxpeeted to be paid when the fiabiiities are settied. The liabilities are presented as current

employeg-penenvengations in the balance sheet.

T pmeorTaten
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{ii) Leave obligations
The Company provides sick ieave and privilege leave to its employees.

Privilege and sick ieave obligation is provided based on actuarial valuation which takes into account
the estimated portion of leave that will be en-cashed, avaited and the portion that will lapse. The
pottion that is expected to be en-cashed is provided for based on the basic salary of the employee
and for the portion that is expected to be availed, the valuations are based on the employees' total
compensation. The liability for earned leave is also classified as current where it is expected to be
availed/ en-cashed during the next 12 months. The remaining portion is classified as non-current. The
amounts of current and non-current liability are based on actuarial estimates.

{iti} Post - employment obligations

The Company operates various post-emplayment schemes, including
(@) defined benefit pfans such as gratuity’
(b} defined contribution pfans such as provident fund.

Gratuity Obligations

The liability or assef recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting pericd less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries

using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting peried on government bonds
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related abfigation,

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense

in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and fosses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the

balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obiigation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
reguiations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The coniributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

3.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shori-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject 1o an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of

the Company's cash management.
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3.14 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equify instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
initial recognition and measurement

Alf financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of directly atiributable transaction cost to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (reguiar way trades) are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories;

=  at amortised cost
»  at fair vaive through profit or loss (FVTPL)
= at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial Assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

@) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting centractual

cash flows, and
b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dafes fo cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest (SP#1) on the principal amount outstanding.

This categoery is the most refevant to the Company. All the Loans and other receivables under financial
assets (except Investments) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that

are not quoted in an active markel.

After initial measurement such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amaortization is
included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generafly applies to loans and other

receivables,

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive Income

All investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company has investment in mutual
funds which are held for trading, are classified as at FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an
instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

# the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FVTOCI, then alf fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income. There is no recycling
of the amounts from Other Comprehensive income (OC1) to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale
of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.
Pe-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of the Company’s similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized {i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheef) when:

The rights to receive cash fiows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an cbligation
to pay the received cash flows in fuli without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewardgjof-the.;

asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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When the Company has transferred its rights fo receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and o what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantiafly afl of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the
extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company has three types of financial assets subject to Ind AS 109's expected credit loss modet:
* Loans receivables measured at amortised cost

*  Retentions receivable, grant receivable from NHAI

* lLoans given to employees
The impairment methodology for each class of financial assets stated above is as follows:

loans receivables measured at amortised cost: Loans receivables at amortised cost are generally short
term in nature considered to be low risk, and thus the impairment provision is determined as 12 months

expected credit losses.

Loans given to employees: For foans given to employees outstanding as on the reporting dates, the has
determined refiably that assessing the probability of defauit at the initial recognition of each and every ioan
or receivable would result in undue cost and effort. As permitted by ind AS 108, the credit provision wili be
determined based on whether credit risk is low only at each reporting date, until the foan is derecognized.
Using the impairment methodology the Company has assessed that no loan loss allowance needs to be

recorded in the hooks of accounts.

Expected credit loss (‘ECL) impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is

described below:;

Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and other contractual revenue receivables - ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net canying amount. Untit the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment aliowance from the gross carrying amount,

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financiat liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss, loans and borrowings, trade payables or other payables.

Aldl financial liabilities are recognized initiaily at fair vaiue.

The Company’s financial liabitities inciude trade and other payabies, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortized cost: After initial measurement, such financial Fabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is caloulated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral pan of
Hhe:EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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3.18

{i

—

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant {o the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. However, the Company
has borrowings at floating rates. The impact of restatement of effective interest rate, year on year due to
reset of interest rate, is not material. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the transaction cost amortization process.

Trade Payables

Trade payabies are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less {or in the normat gperating cycle of the business if longer). if not, they are presented as

non-cusrent liahilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Retention money payahle

This is the category most relevant to the Company. Retention moneys are measured at Fair value initially.
Subsequently, they are measured at amortised cost using the EIR (Effective interest rale) method. Gains
and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the {fabilities are derecognized as well as

through the EIR amortization process.
De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the fability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liabiity is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liabitity.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settie on a net basis, {o realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker {CODM). Chief operating decision maker's function is to allocate the resources
of the entily and access the performance of the operating segment of the entity,

The Board assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic
decisions. It is identified as being the chief operating decision maker for the company.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histerical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumplions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resuits. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabifities are

disclosed below.

Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire
arrangements

The Company has determined that Appendix D of Ind AS 115 ‘Service concession arrangements’ is
tapplicable to the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-to-private service
jgoncession arrangements. The Company has entered into concession arrangement with NHAI ag. per
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which the Company would participate in the Design, Buiid, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis
the toll roads infrastructure. After the end of the concession arrangement, the Company has to transfer the
infrastructure i.e. tolf roads constructed to National Highway Authorities of India (NHAL).

Accordingly the Company has recognized the intangible assets recognized as per the accounting policy
mentioned in Note no 3.5 ‘Accounting of intangible assets under service concessionaire arrangement’.

(il) Income taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets relafing to carried forward tax losses to the extent there
are sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority against which the
unused fax losses can be utllized. However, the utilization of tax losses also depends on the ability of the
Company to satisfy certain tests at the time the losses are recouped. Management has forecasted future
taxable profits and has therefore recognized deferred tax assets in relation to tax losses.

(i) Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected foli
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The projected
totat tofl revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case
of any material change in the expected pattern of economic benefits.

(iv) Provision for resurfacing obligation (major maintenance expenditure)

317

The Company records the resurfacing obfigation for its present obligation as per the concession
arrangement to maintain the toll roads at periodic intervals during the concession period, The provision is
included in the Financial Statements at the present value of the expected future payments. The
calculations fo discount these amounts to their present value are based on the estimated timing of

expenditure occurring on the roads.

The discount rate used to value the resurfacing provision at its present value is determined through
reference to the nature of provision and risk associated with the expenditure.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA"} notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023,
MCA amended the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements —This amendment requires the entities to disclose their
matertal accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April 2023.

Ind AS 8-Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors ~This amendment has
introduced a definition of accounting estimates and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April 2023.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes-This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption
sa that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning o or after 1st April 2023, -

The Company is evaluating the impact of the amendments on the financial statement.
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Note 4 - Concession Intangible assets

T Millions

Intangibie Assets

Particulars
Tol Collection rights

As at March 31, 2022
Opening gross carrying amount 4,619.66
Additions .
Adjusted ;
Closing gross carrying amount 4,619.68
Accumuiated Amortization and impairment
Opening accumulated Amortization and impairment 1,309.23
Amortization charge for the year 328.54
Disposals -
Closing accumulated Amortization and impairment 1,837.77
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 2,981.89
As at Mar 31, 2023
Opening gross carrying amount 4,619.68
Additions B
Impairment of Assets { Refer Note no, 34) 2.265.60
Closing gross carrying amount 2,354.08
Accumulated Amortization and impairment
Opening accumulated Amortization and impairment 1,637.77
Amortization charge for the quarter 303.27
Closing accumulated Amortization and impairment 1,941.04
Net carrying amount as at Mar 31, 2023 413.02

Note:
1} Intangible Assest pledged as security with fenders.

2) Flat ar Bohisar in Maharashtra of Rs 2.26 Million is included in gross block of
Intangible Assets.

3) Allthe title deeds of Immovable property are held in the name of the company
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Nofe 5 - Financial Assets - Current T Millions
_ As at As at
ticut
Particutars Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Note 5 {a) - Cash and Cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 74.02 502
Cash on hand - .38
74.02 5.40
Note § (b) - Other financial assets - current
Retention money receivable from NHA! . 5.60
Otlhers Receivable - 2.25
Claims receivable fram NHAI 10.94 14.78
10.94 22.94
Note 5 {c) - Other financial assets - Non - current
Particulars As at As af
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Security deposits - 0.02
- 0.02
Note 6 - Other Current assets
Advance to vendors - 0.52
Advance to employees - 0.79
Prepaid Expenses - 1.88
Duties and {axes receivable 4.19 4.39
4.1% 7.58
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Note 7 - Share Capital and Other equity

R

¥ Millions
Particul Nos of Shares As at As at

articuiars Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Note 7a - Authorised Share Capital
At the beginning of the year 64,00,000 64.00 64,00
Add ; Increase during the year of 310 each - -
Al the end of the year 64.00 54.00
Note 7h - Issued, subscribed and pald-up equity
share capital
At the beginning of the year 10,704 0.1 0.11
Add : Increase during the year of ¥10 gach - -
Af the end of the year 0.1 0.1

Note 7¢ - Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one ciass of shares referred to as Equity Shares having a Par Value of Rs. 104, Each holder of the share

is entitled {0 one vole per share in the event of liquidation.

Note 7d - Reconciliation of nos of Shares

Nos of Shares at the beginning of the year
Add : Nos of Shares issued during the year

Nos of Shares at the end of the year

Note 7e - Shares held by the Holding Company
or their subsidiaries/associates

Reliance Infrastructure Limited and its nominee
(Holding Company}

Note 7§ - Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares

Reliance Infrastructure Limited and its nominee
Nos of Shares
% of holding

The Holding Company has pledged 5,138 Equity Shares of the Company for availing various term loans.

Note 7h - No of Shares Pledged/safekeep & unpledged by the Promotors : -

10,704 10,704
10,704 10,704
10,704 10,704
10,704 10,704

100% 100%

As al 31st March Ag at JTstMarch
fPariculars 2023 2022
Pledged Shares 5138 5138
Safekeep - -
Unpledged 5566 5566
Total 10704 10704

-Mote 7i - Details of Shares held by promoters

FIRETE

Name

No of Shares

% of Holding

Reliance infrastructure Limited

“ T e A HE )

10704

100%
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Note Ba - Sub-ordinated debt {in nature of equity)

¥ Mitlions
Particutars Mar{;ﬁ .a;ozs Ma:‘ci?gilzom
Al the Beginning of 1he year 1,561.81 1,561.81
Increase / {(decrease) during the year - .
At the end of the year 1,561,819 1,561.81
Note 8a -{i} Sub-ordinated debt infused by Holding Company 1,561.81 1.561.81

Reliance infrastucture Lid ( Holding Company)

Terms and rights aftached to Sub-ordinated debts infused by Holding Company

i} Subordinated debt is the part of Equity from the promoters of the Company for the project, which is unsecured and inleresl
free as per Common Loan agreement with he lenders;

ify No repayment/redemptionfinterest servicing allowed during the moratorium period of the long term project ioan.

Note 8b - Other Equity

¥ Mitlions
] As at As at

Particulars Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Note 8b (i} - Corporate Guarantee (in nature of equity)

Al the beginning of the year 32.50 32.50

fncrease / {decrease) during the year - -

At the end of the year 32.50 32,50

Note 8b (ii) - Retained Earnings

Al the beginning of the year/quarter {1,935.74) {1,678.45)
' Net Profit for the Period {2,644.31) {357.02)

ltems of other comprehensive income recognised
directly in retained earnings
- Remeasuremens of post-employements - (0.27)
obligations {net of tax)

At the end of the year/quarter {4,580.05) {1,935.74)
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Financial Liabilities

Note 9 (a) - Borrowings - Non current

Ag at
articulars

P Mar 31, 2023
Sacured

Term loans
fFrom banks 955,16

T Millions

Asal
March 31, 2022

1,568.23

Total 965,16

1,568.23

1) Rupaoe Term Loan from Banks

The Borrowings are secured by the way of terms slated in Commen Loan Agreement entered hetween fhe Company:-
{iy a firsl ranking pari passu morgage/charge over all the Borrower's immovable and movable properties, both present and fulire, excepl the

Project Assels. |

{ii) a first ranking pari passu charge on all the Borrowar’s bank accounts including, but not timited to the Fscrow Accountf ils Suli-Accouits
where all revenues, Dishursements, receivables shall be depesited and in all funds from time (0 lime deposiled therein and in ail Permilted

invesiments or olther securilies represeming all amounls credited fo the Escrow Account.

(i) a firsf ranking pari passu charge on all movable tangible and inlangible assets of the Borrower (other than those specified in paragraphs (i)
above and (iv) below) including but not limiled to its goodwill, undertaking and uncalied capilal, both present and fulure, excepl thae Project

Asgsels,;

{iv) a firsl ranking pari passu charge over / assignmenl of Ihe rigiv, title, inlerests, benelits, claims and demands of the Borrower in, 1o ang
unger any lelter of credit, guarantees {excepl the guarantees issued in favour of NHAI including contractor guarantees and liguidaled dainages

and performance bond provided by any parly lo the Projecl Documents.
(v} the applicable interest rate for Rupee Term Loan varies from 9.60% 1o 10.10% p.a.

vi) The interest is payable monthly as per the applicable Interesl rales.

vii) Filing of the quarterly relurns or slatements of current assets is not applicable to the company.

viii} None of the Banks / Fil /Clher tenders has declared the company as wilful defaulter in accordance with guidefines on wilful defauliers

issued by RBL Hence willul defaulter disclosure is nol applicable

iy No charges or satisfaction is pending lo be registered with ROC heyound the stalutory period

2) Due to the outhreak of COVID-19, the Reserve Bank of India has granted refief to borrowers by way of moratorium of interes! and principal
inslalmenis falling due to indian banks and financial institulions (i Aug 2020. The company availed the moratorium and nofified 10 bank,

3} The Helding Company has pravided Corporate Guarantee In form and manner salisfaclory to the lenders as per Common Loan Agreement.

4) The carrying amounls of assels pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are considered in Nole no. 30

Maturity Profile of Secured Torm Loan (Principal undiscounted) are as under -

Financial Year Amount

Principal due 581.54
2023-24 830.57
2024-25 747 52
Total 2,159.63

4a} The company has delayed in the repayment of principal & Interest (o the Banks & financial inslilution which were paid on or before balance

sheel dale. The lender wise details is as below -

Tn Ny

¥ Millions
Name of Lender Rorrowings Interest
Amount Period Amownt Period =~ .
Yos Bank 370,38 89 103.98 g5

4b) The company has delayed in the repayment of principal & inlerest lo 1he Banks & financial institution which were not paid on or before®),

balance sheet date. The lender wise details is as below :

T Millions ™

Name of Lender Borrowings Interest
- i Amount Period Amouny Period
Ves Bank T 581.54 181 143.89 181
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Note 9 () - Borrowings - Curront ¥ Millions
Particulars As at As ot

Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured

unsecurad, repayable on demand and inlrest lree)
ity

l.oan from relaled paiies 648.24 438.24
L.oan from others 21,70 -
Secured
surrent Maturities of long term debt 1,204.47 951,92
1,894.41 1,.390.16
Note 10 - Trade Payables L
¥ Milions
As at Mg al
Particulars Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Payables - Other than Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprise 85.04 .56
85.04 G156
a) frade Payables ageing schedule
Listanding {or below periods Trom dale of ransachon
Particulars Less than 1 More than 3
Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years Total
1} MSME - - - -
2) Others 52.63 11.37 1,30 19.73 85,04
33 Unbilled Dues - - - -
4) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - -
5) Dispuled Dues - Others - - - - -
Total 52,63 14.37 1,30 19.73 85.04
8277 5.09 7.43 26.27 G1.56

(c) Bues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Disclosure of payable lo venders as defined under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprise Development Act, 2006" is based on the
infarmation available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Acl, as per the intimation received
from them on requests made by the company. There are nie overdue principal amountsfinterest payable amounts for delayed payments o such
vendors at the Balance Sheel date. There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for any earlier years and
accordingly there is no inleres! paid or oulstanding interest in this regard in respecl of payments made during the year or brought forward from
PIevious years.

Note 11 - Other financial liabifities - current

¥ Millions
Particulars As at As at
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest Accrued and due 143.89 G4.74
Employee Benefil Payable 0.69 347
Relention money payable 71.583 72.08
Total 216,10 140.01
Retention Payables ageing schedule
Ouistanding for below perisds from date of {ransaction
Farticulars Less than 1 More than 3
Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years Totat
1} Retention maney payable 2.19 1.86 0.08 67.40 71.53
Total 219 1.86 0.08 67.40 71.53
Mar-22 2.44 - 0.08 69.57 72.09
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Note 12 {a) - Provisions - Curront

_— T Miillons
Particutars As at As al
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current
Provigion for employes benefits
- Gratuity - 0.21
- Leave encashmenl . .01
- G.22
Note 12 (b) - Provisions - Non - Curront
Provision for employee benegfits
- Giraluily - (.04
- Leave encashment - 0.09
Others
- Resurfacing expenses 336.34 35586
336,34 366.00
Movement of Resurfacing provisions is as follows:
At the beginning of the year 355.85 27725
Charged { {crediled) 1o profil or loss
Provision made during the year - 67 .44
Unwinding of discount - 36,13
Amourt ulilised during the year 19.52 24.97
Al the end of the year 338.34 355 B

Resurfacing provisions - significant estimates

As per lhe service concession arrangement with NHAI, the Company is obligaled to carry out resurfacing of the reads under concession. The
Company accrues the provision required lowards resurfacing cost in stalemenl of profit & loss in accordance with Ind AS 37 ' Provisions,
sontingent Liabilities and Contingenl Assels. Refer Note no. 3.5 maintenance obligalions. These provisions are made based on the best
estimate of the managemenl which are reviewed periodically and necessary effect for the changes, il any, are taken in the financiais on
prospeclive basis.

Note 13 - Other current liahilities

7 Millions
. As at As at
Particuiars Mar 31, 2623 March 31, 2022
e A e
Dulies and taxes payable 1.38 0.81

1.3 8.81
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¥ Mitlions
Year Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Note 14 - Revenue
Operating income
- Inceme from 1oif colieclions 474.32 566,42
474.32 566,42
Note 15 - Other income
Inlerest income
- On fixed deposits - 0.04
- 0.04
Note 16 - Tol Operation and Maintainence expenses
Subcontracling expenses 32.58 33.97
Maintainence of Roads 33.56 10417
Electricity expenses 3.82 6.53
Handling Charges 0.08 0.62
Sile and other direct expenses 2.18 0.24
{ s 72.22 145 52
Note 17 - Employee benefits expenses
Salaries wages and bonus 3.88 9.38
Contribulion 1o provident funds and other funds 0.28 0.44
Gratuity 0.20 0.214
l.eave encashment - 0.07
Stafl welfare expenses 0.20 Q.11
4.56 10.20
Note 18 - Finance Costs
interest on Loan 247.87 293.84
Unwinding of discount on provisions - 36.13
Other finance charges 9.97 012
257.84 330.09
Note 19 - Other expenses
Rates & taxes 0.04 0.03
insurance 9.13 9.06
Legal and Professional Charges 12.89 16.91
Auditor remuneration 0.27 0.24
Travelling and Conveyance 0.36 0.20
Other miscellaneous expenses 5.24 0.39

27,93 26.82
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Note 20 - Fair value measurements

Firancial Instruments by category
{a) Signficance of financial instruments

T Millions
Particulars As at As at
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial assets
At amorlised Cost

Security Deposits - 0.02

Other receivables - 2.25

Retention Monay receivable from NHA . 5.90

Cash and Cash equivalent 74.02 540

Claims receivable from NHA! 10.94 1478

Total financial assets 84.96 28.36

Financial liabilities
At amortised Cost

3 Floating Rate Borrowings 2,159.63 2,5620.16
Shor Term Borrowings 668.24 438.24
Trade Payables 85.04 91.56

Retenlion money payable 71.53 72.09

interest accrued but not due 143.89 64,74

Employee Benefil Payable 0.69 3.47

Total financial liabilities 3,129.03 3,189.97




(b) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

¥ Millions
: Agat AETEl
Particutars Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial liabilities
Carrying value of financial Habilities at amortised cost

Floaling rate borrowings 2,159.63 252016
Retenlion money 71.53 72.09
2,231.16 259225

Fair value of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Floating rate borrowings 2,158.63 2,520.16
Retention money 71.53 72.09
2,231.16 258225

The carrying value amounts of retention money receivable, insurance claim receivable, cash and cash
eguivalents trade payables, interest accrued, empioyee benefits payable and creditors for capital expendilure
approximate their fair value due to their shorl term nature.For financial assets and liabilittes that are measured
at fair value, the carrying amounts are egual {o the fair values.
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Note 21 - Fair value Hierarchy

{a) Fair value hierarchy - Assels and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values
are disclosed

T Milllons
i As al As a8t
Particulars Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial liabilities

Level 3
Floaling Rate Borrowings 2,159.63 2,520.16
Relention money payable 71.53 72.09
Total financial liabilities 2231.16 258225

Recognised fair value measurements
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy inciudes financial instruments measured using quoled prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are nol traded in an aclive markel (for example, overdhe-counier
derivatives} is defermined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of ohservable market data and rely as
little as possible on entily-specific estimates. {{ all significant inputs required to falr value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Levei 3; if one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in
{evel 3. This is the case for borrowings, debentures, Rerention moeney payable and hedging derivative included in
level 3

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

« the use of guoted market prices or dealer quotes for simifar instruments

+ the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap is determined using forward exchange rates
at the balance sheel date

« the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis,
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Note 22 - Concession arrangements - Main fealures

3 Millions
Name of Description of the [Significant terms of the arrangement Intangible Assets
entity arrangement Gross book | Net book value
value
JR Toll Read |Financing, design, Period of concession; 2010 - 2028 March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2023

Private huilding and operation |(Project Terminated w.e.{

Limited of 62 kitemelre long  1d1.15,12.2022

four lane foli road Remuneration : Toll

between Jaipur and  [Investment grant from concession
Reengus or: National  igrantor: Yes

Highway 11 Infrastructure return at the end of 2,354.06 413.02
concession period ; Yes

investment and renewal obligations
Nil

Re-pricing dales : Yearly

Basis upon which re-pricing or re- March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2022
negotiation is delermined : Inflation
Fremium payable 1o grantor : Nil 4,616.66 2,981.89
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Note 23 - Financial risk management

The Company aclivilies exposes il lo markel risk, fiquidity risk and credit risk.

This note explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity is manage the risk.

Risk

Credit risk

Markel risk — foreign exchange

Markel risk — inlerest rate

Liguidity risk

Exposure arising
from

Cash and cash
equivalenls, rade
receivables, financial
assels measured at
amorised cost,

Recognized financial
assels and liahilities
not denominated in
Indian rupee (INR)

Long-term borrowings
at variable Rates

Borrowings and other
liabililies

Measurement

Aging analysis Credit
ratings

Cash flow forecasting

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis

Rolling cash flow
forecasts

Management

Diversification of
bank deposits, credit
limits and letiers of
credil

Actively Managed

Actively Managed

Availability of
committed credil
lines and borrowing
facilities

The Company's risk management is carried out by a project finance team and central treaswry team (group treasury) under policies
approved by board of directors. Group treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risk in close co-operation with the group’s
operaling units. The Management of the Company provides wrilten principles for overall risk management, as well as policies
covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk and credif risk, use of derivative financial instrument and non-derivative financial

instrument, and investments of excess liquidity.

Commodity risk:

The Company requires for implementation (construction, operation and maintenance} of the projects, such as cement, bilumen, stee
and other construction materials. for which, the Company entered into fixed price coniract with the EPC contractor and Q&M
Contractor so as to manage our exposure fo price increases in raw materials. Hence, the sensitivity analysis is not required

Market risk — interest rate risk

a) Interest rate risk exposure

Particulars

Variable Rate Borrowings
Fixed Rate Borrowings

Total

Sensitivity

¢ - dhe Bank loans follows fleating rates with resets defined under agreements. While interest rate fluctuations carry a risk on financials,
““the Company eam toll income which is linked to WP thus providing a natural hedge to the interest rate risk.

T Millions
As at As at
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2,159.63 2.520.18
2,159.863 2,620,16

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

Impact on profitfioss after fax

Interest rates {increase) by 100 basis points (18.23) (21.27)
interest rates decrease by 100 basis points o 18.23 21.27
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Liquidity risk - Table

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without
incurring unacceptable losses. The Company objective is {o, at all times maintain optimun levels of liquidity 1o meel ils cagh and
collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system, It
maintains adequate sources of financing including debl from banks at an optimized cosl. The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of
expecled maturity dates of the financial liabilities. The average credit period taken lo settle trade payables is about 30 to 60 days. The
carrying amounts are assumed {0 be a reasonable approximation of fair value. The following table analyses financial liabilities by
remaining contractual maturities.

The table below analyses the group's non-derivative financial liabilities and nel-setlled derivative financial liabiflies into relevant
malurity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contraclual matwity date. Derivative financial
tiabllities are included in the analysis if their contractual maturilies are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows,
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows,

T Millions

As at March 31, 2023 Upto 1 Year More than 1 Year Total

*. {on-derivatives
Borrowings 1,412.11 747.52 2,159.63
Interest on Borrowings 290.35 29.04 319.39
Trade and other payables 85.04 - 86.04
Other financial liabifities 740.46 - 740.46
Total non-derivatives 2,527.97 776.56 3,304.53
As at March 31, 2022 Upto 1 Year More than 1 Year Tolat
Non-derivalives
Borrowings 051.92 1.5678.00 2,530.01
Interest on Borrowings 280.24 192.2% 482 .45
Trade and olher payables 91.56 - 91.56
Other financiat liabilities 513.50 513.51

Total non-derivatives 1.847.23 1,770.30 361754
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Note 24 - Capital risk management
The Company objeclives when managing capital are 1o

safeguard their ability 1o continue as a going concern, so that they can conlinue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

. Maintain an optimal capilal structure 1o reduce the cosl of capital.

For the purpose of the Company capital management, capital inciudes issued equity capital, share
premium, sub-debls and afl other equily reserves attributable 1o the equily holders of the parent. The
primary objective of the Company capital management is to maximize lhe shareholder value.

The Company manages its capitaf structure and makss adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to sharehoiders or issue
interest free sub-ordinate debt. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debl
divided by lolal capital plus net debt. The Company policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio. The
Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade payabies, iess cash and
cash equivalents.

in order to achieve this overall objective, the Company capilal management, amongst other things, aims
to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached 1o the inferest-bearing loans and borrowings that
define capital structure requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital for year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the feflowing gearing
ratic:

Net debt including total borrowings (net of cash and cash equivalents)
divided by

Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet).

T Millions
Particuiars As at As at
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net debt (a) 2,753.86 2,952.99
Eguity  (b) {2,985.63) {341.33)
Net debt to equity ratio (a) / (b) {0.92) {8.65)
T Miitions
Particulars As at As at
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net debt {a) 2,753.86 2,952.99
Equity (b) {2,985.63) (341.33)
Nebt debt plus Equily (c = a+b) (231.78) 2,611.67
Gearing ratio (a) f ¢ (11.88) 1.13
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Note 25 - Earning Per Share

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit / {.oss attributable to equily shareholders (Rs Miflions) (A} (2,644.31) (357.02)

Weighted average number of equily shares for basic and diluted 10,704 10,704

earnings per share (8)

Eartiings / {Loss} per share {Basic and diluted) {(Rupees) {A/B} (2,47,039) (33,353)

Nominal value of equily shares (Rupees) 10,00 10.00
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Note 26 - Income Tax Expense

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to ; T Milhions
) As at As al
Particulars Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

{a) Income tax expense

Current tax

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods - 0.05
Total current tax expense - 0.05

Deferred (ax

Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assels 453.09 78.07
{Decrease)fincrease in deferred tax liabilities {265.88} {590}
Total deferred tax expensel{benefit) 187.21 1217
income tax expense 187.21 72.22

Income tax expense is attributable to:

Profit as per Ind AS from continuing operations before income lax expense (2,457.10) (284.71)
Income Tax as per effective Tax Rate of 26% (6:38.85) {(74.01)
Reversal/ {Created) Defered Tax 187.214 7217
Expenses Disallowed and Others B638.85 74.07

Total Tax Expense 187.214 72.23
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Nete 27 - Deferred tax (llabitity) / Asset

The halance comprises temporary differences atiributable to :

Particulars Notes

Deferred tax liability on account of:

Intangible assets
Borrowings

Deferred tax asset on account of;

Derivatives
Unused tax losses carried forward

MMR Provision/ Retention Money
. irement benefil obligation

Net deferred tax (Habilitylasset

2 Millions

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

263.32
2.56

360.48

a92.62
0.09

187.21

The deferred tax asset has been recognised in the financial statements to the exlent reasonable certainty 1hat taxable income will be

generated in near future,

Movement in deferred tax liability / asset

¥ Millions
Unused Tax Intangible assets - .
Particulars Losses toil coltection rights Other itoms Total
As at April 01, 2021 458.85 (267.91) 68.44 258.38
Chargedf(credited) during the year
to profit or toss (98.37) 4.59 21.52 (72.25}
to other comprehensive income - - 0.09 .09
As at March 31, 2022 36048 {263.32) 80.05 187.21
=t Aprit 01, 2022 360.48 (263.32) 80.05 187.21
Chargedi{credited) during the year
to profit or loss (360.48) 263.32 (90.05) {187.21)
to other comprehensive income - - . -
As at March 31, 2023 - - - -

Note : - Deferred Tax Assets has not been provided in books due to reasonable uncertainty in realisation of future profit,
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MNote 28 - Related Parly Transactions

As per ind AS-24 * Related Party Disclosure” the Company's reiated parlies and {rasnsactions wilh them in the
ordinary course of business are disclosed below

Holding Company
Refiance Infrastructure Limited

Key Management Personnel

Madan Gopal Pendse - Director resigned (w.e f. 26th April '2022)
Rajesh Das - Director resigned {w.e.f. 26th April '2022)

Srinivasa Chayi Kasoju- Director

Arup Ashok Gupla -Direclor

Shailendra Hastimal Jain - Director

Details of transactions and closing balance

T Miltions
. Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
3
" Transactions during the vear :

Inter-corporate deposit received during the year
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 180.00 237.70
NK Toll Road Pvt Ltd 50.00 63.00
Balances at the year end
Inter-corporate deposit
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 555.24 375.24 |
NK Tall Road vt Ltg 113.00 £63.00
Retention Money
Reiiance infrastructure Limited 58.64 58.64
Other current liabilities
Refiance Infrastructure Limited 17.56 17.56
Sub-debts {in nature of equity)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 1.561.81 1,66%.81
Equity share capital {excluding premium)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 0.11 0.11%
Corporate Guarantee given on behalf of the company
Reliance Infrastructure Limited : -
Amount of Guarantee 2,303.52 3,070.00
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Note 29- Gratuity and ofhor post-employment benefit plans

a) Befined contribution plan

¥ Millions

The following amount recognized as an expense in Statement of profit and loss on account of provident fund and olher funds, There are no olher

obligations other than the conlribulion payable to he respoective authoritios,

Particwlars

As at
March 31, 2023

As al
March 31, 2022

Contribution to provigent fund and other funds

Totat

a) Defined henefit plan

0.28

0.44

0.28

.44

The Company Grodp has a defined benefit plan (Graluity} lar its employees. The graluity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuily Acl, 1972,
Under the Acl, employee who has completed five years of service is enlilied 1o specific benefit. The fevel of benefils providad depends on the
member's lenglh of service and salary al retirement age. Every employes who has compleled five years of more of service gels a gratuily on
deparlure at 15 days satary {tast drawn salaiy) for gach compleled year of service as per e provision of lhe Paymenl of Grafuity Act, 1972 with 1otat

ceiling on graluity of Rs.1,000,000/-. The said gratuily plan is funded,

The following tables summaries the The amounts recegnised in the balance sheel and the movements in the nel defined benefil obligalion ovar (e

year are as follows:

Particulars

Ag at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Change in the Present Value Of Defined Benefit Obligation
Opening defined benelil fiability / (assels)

Interest cosl on benefil obligation

Current service cost

Pasl service cosl

{Gain} / {osses on setilement

Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expensef{income)
Acluarial loss f (gain} arising from change in financia! assumptions
Actuarial loss / {gain) arising on accourt of demographic assumplions
Experience {gains)iosses

Closing net defined benefit Hability / (assef)

1.86
10
0.17

{1.10)
0.10
{0.00)
0.28

141

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

Agat
March 31, 2022

Cpening fabr value of plan assets

Interest income on plan asset
Measurement during the period dug o
Relurn on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interesl Income

Closing fair value of plan assets

1.08
0.06

0.01

1.15
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Note 28- Gratully and other post-employment henefit plans T Millions
JR Toll Road Pyt Lid
Notes to the Finanelal Slatements as of and for the year ended Mar 31, 2023
Note 29- Gratuity and other post-cmpioyment benefil plans
The net diabilily/assel disclosed above relates 1o funded plan is as foliows: " Millions
As at AL al
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Prasent value of funded obligations - 1.4%
Fair value of plan assels* - 1.14
Amounlt not recognised as an assel {assef ceiling)
- 0.26

Not liability Is bifurcated as folows :
Current « 0.21
Non-turrem - 0.04

Totaf - .26
Expenses Recognized in the Consalidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Currenl Service Cost - 017
Nel Inleresl Cost - 0.04
Expenses Rocognised - 0.21
Expenses Recognised in Other Comprehonsive lncome (OCH)
Acluarial Lasses on Obligation {nel of plan assets) for the year - 0.37
Return on Plan Assets Excluding inleresl income - {0.01)
Net Expenses for the Perfod Recognised in OCI {including Discontinued Operations) - .36

As af As al

Partficiudars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Discount rale
Expected rate of return on plan assets {p.a.)
Salary escalafion rale {p.a.}

Mortalily pre-retirement

A quantilative analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

5.66%

5.66%

8.00%

fndian Assured Lives
Martality

{2012-14)

Particiflars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Assumptions -Discount rate

Sensitivily Level

Impact on defined benefit obligalion -in % increase
impact an defined benefit obligation -in % decrease
Assumptions -Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level

tmpact on defined benefit obligalion -in % increase
Impact on defined benefit obligation -in % decrease

100 bp
“2.62%
2.82%

100 bp
2.73%
-2.59%

The table below shows the expected cash flow profite of the benefils 1o be paid o {he current membership of the plan based on past service of lhe

Particulars

ASat
March 31, 2023

REat
March 31, 2022

Within the rext 12 months (next annual reporting perlod)
Belween 2 and 5 years

Between 6 and 10 years

For and Beyond 11 years

Total expected paymeats

The average duration of the defined benefil plan obligation at the end of the reporting

period

Plan Assets Composition

0.24
4.95
0.27
0.17
1.68

5 years

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Non Quoted

* As per acluriaL.\jré}g.ia_libn"fé'p‘oﬂt
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Note 30 - Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounls of assels pledged as securily for current and non-current horrowings are:

¥ Miltions
Particulars Notes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current
Financial assets
First charge
Cash and cash equivalents Ha 74.02 5.40
Other Financiat Assets 5k 10,94 22.93
Non-financial assets
First charge
Other Current Assets G 4.19 7.58
Total current assets pledged as security 89.15 35.91
Non-current
First charge
Intangible Asset 4 413.02 2,981.89
Securit Deposit 5f . 0.02
Total non-current assets pledged as security 413.02 2.981.81
Total assets pledged as security 502.17 3.017.82
Note 31 - Auditor Remuneration
T Millions
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 3%, 2022
Audit Fees 0.24 0.24
Certification Fees 0.03 0.00
0.27 0.24
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¥ Millions

Note 32 - Disclosure pursuant to para 44A to 44E of Ind AS 7 - Cash Flow Statement

Year Ended Year Ended March

Particulars March 31,2023 31,2022
Long term Berrowings
Opening Balance 2,520.16 2,970.00
Interest convert into Loan - -
Changes in Fair Value

- Impact of Effective Rate of interest 8.85 5.03
Repaid During the year {370.38) (454.87)
Closing Balance 2,159.64 2,620.16
Sub-ordinated debt (In nature of equity )
Opening Batance 1,561.81 1,5661.81
Availed during the year - -
Repaid During the year - -
Closing Balance 1,561.81 1,561.81
interest Expenses
Cpening Balance 64.74 73.41
Interest Charge as per Statement Profit & Loss 257.84 330.09
Changes in Fair Value
- Interest convert into Loan - -
- Impact of Effective Rate of Interest (9.85) {5.03)
- Unwinding of Discount on provisions - (36.13)
-Provision on finance cost adjust with penal interest - -
Other Misc
Interest paid to Lenders {168.83) (297.59)
Closing Balance 143.90 64.74
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Note 33 - Candingent liabilities and Comenitmant

The indirecl tax authorities during an investigation in Financial Year 2016 stated thal the Gampany wasg not eligible to avail CENVAT
credit as there was no oulpul service liable 1o tax. The depariment issued an order in April 2016 demanding interesl on the CENVAT
credit availed for period October 2010 to March 2012 and penaily on account of willul suppression of facts. The Company has
appealed against such order before the Tax Appellale Tribunal. The fribunal has sel aside lhe said adjudication order against which
depariment has now gone in appeal before the Hor'ble High Court of Mumbai.

FASTag Penally : -The company has been collecting penally from the users for using FASTag lanes without valid FASTag, the same
has been considered as part of income of the company since the company is of the view that the same is not payable to NHAI
notwithstanding Ihe demands from NHAL The aggregate amound of penally collecled and approprialed under Income for March 31,
2023 is Rs.11.30 Mn { Previous Year Rs.19.94 Mn)

Nole 34 - Arbitration Claims

£R2C Contractor has raised claims against the Gompany under the provisions of the EPC Agreement which primarily arose due 1o
avents allributed to NHALL The claims were scrutinized by the Company and after due deliberations, it is agreed between (he
Company and the EPC Condractor that the claims shall be referred to NHAI for consideration

Accordingly the Company, along wilh its claims, submitted the claims of the EPC Conlraclor to NHA! for consideration. The claims
were not accepted by NHAY and therefore were put forward for amicable settlement belween the two Chalrmen of NHAI and the
Company under the Dispute Resolution procedure of the Concession Agreement. However no selllement could be arrived between
NHAJ and the company within the stiputated time. The company has referred the claims to arbifration

The £PC Contractor has agreed to await the conclusion of process of Arbitration between the company and NHAI before pursuing
further action on the maller. il is agreed between the company and the EPC Contractor that till such time as the Arbitration between
company and NHAI is concluded, no rights of the EPC Contractor with regard to Limitation on the claims witl be affected. The
company wilf update the LPC Contraclor with regard to the status of the Arbilration process with NIHAI

The Claims referred to Arbitration by the company amounls to Rs.2381.498 Million which also includes the claim of the EPC
Contraclor amounting to Rs. 1426.12 Million. On 20.01.2023, the Abilral Tribunal pronounced an Award in favour of the Company
for an amount of Rs 337.81 millians {includes interest of Rs 57.14 millions till the date of award). Further, the Tribunal has also
awarded an interest of 12% from the date of Award till the date of realization if the awarded amount is not paid within 50 days from
the dale of Award. the Company exploring the possibility of filing Section 34 of A&C against this award as Award has been granted
liquidaled damages under clause 10.3.4 of Concession Agreement instead of d compensation under Clause 35.2 Compensation for
default by the Authority of the Concession Agreement calimed by the Company..

On 15.12.2022, Termination Notice was issuedby the Authority terminating the Concession Agreement alleging defaull in
contractual obligations (including purported default in maintenance obligations).Since the termination of the CA by the Authority is
arbitrary, iflegal and wrongful, the same are being disputed by the the Company. the Company approached Delhi High Courl by fifing
Petition under section 9 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 for interim relief. The said matler is pending. the Company
invoked arbitration on 11.3.2023 and nominated Justice B.P Singh, as Arbitrator. NHAL is yet to appoint its nominee Arbitrator. in the
arbilration proceedings | the Company would refer disputes of issuance of illegal termination notice by NHAI and seek compensation
for arbitrary and illegal termination and also refer the disputes refating 1o other claims under CA which are pending with NIHAL

Termination of the Project : - During the Year, National Highways Authority of india (NHAI} has wrongfully terminated the
Concession Agreement with the Company w.e.f. December 15, 2022 citing defaulls relating to maintenance and other contractual
obligations on the part of the Company. The project assets had been taken over by NHAI sffective from 15.12.2022 evening. The
Company believes that the termination has been wrongfully done and the company has invoked Arbitration for invalidation of
wrongful termination and / or compensation for breach of the Concession Agreement. Even in the eventuality of the termination being
sustained, the company shalf be eligible for compensation as per the extant provisions of the concession agreement, which as per
the best estimate of the management, shall be sufficient to cover the carrying amount of the intangible assets and hence no provision
for impairment is considered nacessary as at the reporting date.

Further, Yes Bank Limited, one of the lenders of the Company has filed a petition ufs 9 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996
against NHAI in Hon'ble Delhi High Court {DHC), to stay the termination of the concession and to allow Yes Bank Limited to exercise
its right of Substitution of the Concessionaire under the Substitution Agreement, in respact of which the next Date of Hearing is
scheduled on May 18, 2023,

However based on the assessment perfermed recently and out of prudence the company has made provision for impairment of
assets of Rs 2265.60 Million and considered the same as exceptional Hem.

In view of the {fermination and handover of assets being disputed, the dispule being at a nascent stage, the status thereof is being
reviewed on an ongeing basis and necessary effect, if any, shall be taken depending upon the development in the matter.

Notwithstanding the dependence on above-saig uncertam. eyents, the cempany continues 1o prepare the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Note 35 ~ Events after reporting period
There are no subsequent event after the reporing:périodWwhich required adjustments to the Financial Statements.

Note 36 —-Fareign currency Exposure
The Company does nof have any exposure in the foreign currency.
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Note 37 - Ratio Analysis

¥ Millions

Partictlars Mar-23 Mar-22 VarL?nce Reason for change
(1]
1) Current ratio {alb} 0.09 0.05
Current Assets {a) 89.15 35.91 68
Currend Liabilily (b} 092 .46 670.84
2) Debt Equity ratio (c/d) {0.95) (8.67) Due to continous incurring of
Debt (¢) 2,849.57 2,858.40 (89)|losses,equity has been reduced
Equity (d) (2,985.63) (341.32) resufling in negative ratio,
3) Debt Service Coverage ratio ( eff) {3.52} 0.50
EBITSA (e} (1,895.99) 373.91
Inleresl an Term Loan 168.83 297.59 (B0S)
Principal Repayment 370.38 454 .87
Tolal Interest & Principat Repayment {f) 539,21 752.47
; .-,j: Return on Equity ratio (g/h) 1.59 219 Return on equity is low mainly
Profit afler Tax (g) {2,644.31) {357.02) (28){because of the company is
Average Shareholder’s Equity {h) {1,663.48) {162.68) incureing losses.
5) Trade Payable Turnover ratio (ifj} 1.13 2.22
Net Credit Purchases (i) 100.15 172.35 (49)
Average Trade payable {j) 88.30 77.68
6} Net Capital Turnover ratio (n/kj (4.44} {2.85)
Net Sales (k) 474.32 556.42 Due fo increase in current matirity
Current Assels {1 89.15 35.91 56 |of long term loan and short {ferm
Currend Liabilities {m) 2,186.93 1.622.76 borrowing during the year
Working Capital (n) {I-nm} (2,107.79) (1,586.85)
7} Net Profit ratio {5.57) {0.64}
Profil after Tax {m) (2,644.31) (357.02) 769
Net Sales (n) 474,32 556.42
A i
c Return on Gapital Employed {ofr} 16,16 0.02 Due 1o Increase in operational
BITA (0) 2,199.27 45.38 i o
profit and reduction in debt
Net Worth {p) (2.985.63) (341.32); 93,123 resulting in marginal improvement
Total Debt (q} 2,849.57 2,958.40 i ratio
Total Capital Employed (1) {p+q} 136.07 2,617.08 )
9) Return on Investment {s/t} NA NA
10) Inventory Turnover ratio NA NA
11) Trade Receivahle Turnover ratio NA NA
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Note 38 : Other Statutory information

The company has no fransactions with struck off companies under secfion 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or seclion
560 of Companies Act, 1856

The Company do not have any Capital-work-in progress or intangible assets under development, whose
compietion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds {o any other person(s}) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly fend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (Ullimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities
© unding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shalk:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
onh behalf of the Funding Party (Uitimate Beneficiaries) or
b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uiltimate Beneficiaries.

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961,

Note 39 Note on segmental reporting

The Company is engaged in "Road Infrastructure Projects” which in the context of Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment” is
considered as the only segment. The Company's activities are restricted within india and hence, no separate
geographical segment disclosure is considered necessary.

Note 40 Details of Crypto currency or virtual currency
Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

As per our attached report of even dale
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